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1. Jireh Swift, 96 Madison 
 
Originally built in 1857 for Edward Baker, the treasurer of the Wamsutta Mills and later a stock 
broker, the house at 96 Madison Street was soon sold to Jireh Swift, a prominent banker whose 
wealth was augmented by investments in whaling.  It is a foursquare, three story home entered 
through a handsome porch dominated by round arches with delicate rope moldings.  The 
round arches, Italian in origin, are echoed by the twin round-topped windows in the heavy 
cornice.  A skylight was added by a later owner to accommodate an artist's studio.  The arch of 
rope molding at the entry is a distinctive feature of New Bedford dwellings.  Such molding 
often appears on 19th century homes of a variety of styles and is a constant reminder of New 
Bedford's nautical past, when New Bedford rope, known as "tub line" was recognized 
worldwide for its quality. 
 



 
 
 

 
 

2.  Peleg C. Howland, 95 Madison Street 
 
Peleg C. Howland purchased the house at 95 Madison Street in 1876 after a local builder, 
William Tillinghast, had two similar houses constructed on adjoining lots. Howland had come to 
New Bedford from Westport and in 1851 was employed as a teller in the Merchants Bank.  In 
that same year, he married Lucy Congdon, daughter of the Head Cashier.  He then became 
Cashier at the death of his father-in-law.  After the death of his first wife he married Clara 
Kempton for whom this Stick-Style house was built. Following her death he married her sister, 
Elizabeth Kempton. 
 
European buildings of the fifteenth century have the same steep roofs, intricate asymmetrical 
plan and pierced wooden moldings as seen here.  The carpentry is in the fashion of "Gothik" 
decoration espoused by Charles Eastlake, an influential architectural historian and decorator of 
the late nineteenth century.  The use of several colors to emphasize the variety of carvings was 
a widespread Victorian practice. 



 

 
 

3. Samuel H. Cook, 97 Madison 
 
The house at 97 Madison Street was built in 1875 for an investor, William Tillinghast, and was 
sold to Samuel H. Cook, a prominent insurance executive whose company specialized in marine 
insurance. The house remained in the Cook family for 80 years. Its Stick Style features include a 
prominent network of wide boards that frame the major divisions of the structure. It also bears 
the steep medieval roofline with an extensive perforated crest rail and other cutout features 
characteristic of Eastlake influence. 



 
 
 

 
 

4.  Andrew Pierce, 99 Madison Street 
 
The large home at 99 Madison Street was built between 1880 and 1883 for Mrs. Elizabeth 
Leonard whose late husband, Charles H. Leonard, owned a prosperous candleworks in the city. 
(At mid-century there were twenty-one candle manufacturing concerns in New Bedford). She 
later sold the house to Andrew Pierce in 1901.  At that time he was President of Pairpoint 
Corporation, one of the premier glass manufacturing companies of the early twentieth century. 
This home is of the Shingle Style, a style inspired by early colonial homes in America.  Its 
massive intersecting gambrel roofs and tall western tower seem to swell outward under the 
pressure of some unknown inner force, a feature highly characteristic of this style. 
 
The architect was the firm of Peabody and Stearns, a Boston office with close ties to New 
Bedford. Robert Swain Peabody was born in the city when his father, Ephriam Peabody, was, 
from 1838 to 1844, the minister of the First Unitarian Church. The firm also designed the Parish 
House addition to the same Unitarian Church in 1895. 


